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December 2, 2011 
 

 
ADDENDUM #1 
NWRFP-11-38 

Engineering Services 
Ewen Avenue Reconstruction 

New Westminster, BC 
 

 
 

This addendum modifies the Request for Proposal only as noted: 
 
In response to question received, the City provides the following answers/clarifications: 
 
Q1 What landscape improvements are anticipated for the north side of Ewen Avenue? 
A1 The City has not specified what type of landscape to be utilized for the north side of Ewen 

Avenue between the railway and road. This should be recommended by the proponents.  
 

The landscaping plan will be developed in consultation with the Parks Department. The 
City anticipates that the proposals contain an allowance for the development of the 
landscaping plans. In this section of Ewen Avenue, we are looking for a “green solution” 
that will enhance the walking experience along the multi-use path, and minimize long-
term maintenance costs. 

 
 
Q2 Extent of shrub planting versus typical lawn and trees in south side boulevard? 
A2 The proponents should recommend the type of planting within the south boulevard. 
 
Q3 What is the expected treatment (planting, grass, aggregate lined, weirs, etc) for the 

bioswale? 
A3 The same answer for question 2 applies. 
 
 
Q4 Is there an anticipated budget for landscape improvements. 
A4 The City has not anticipated the amount of budget for landscape improvements. 
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Q5 In reviewing the information package provided, I have noted that AECOM drawings 

classify the ditch on the south side of Ewan as Class B watercourse subject to RAR 
requirements and a QEP assessment is required. However I checked the City website and 
confirmed that the ditch is classified as Class B between Boyd and Stanley however 
according to the attachment, small scale works such as utilities servicing (the 
geotechnical test pits and GVRD water main inspection likely fall under this 
classification) do not require a QEP assessment. All that is required is that the City 
contact the DFO prior to the work starting. 
We believe that the GVRD main will be close to the ditch. When preparing our proposal, 
can we assume that we don’t have to take any special measures when excavating the 
water main near the ditch other than perhaps providing a silt screen? Will we have to 
reinstate the ditch? The backhoe can certainly clean up the area however we won’t be 
able to restore the ditch to its original condition. 

A5 GVRD has specific rules for excavation close to its mains. The proponents can contact 
Metro Vancouver to find out the requirements. The proponents should restore the site 
after excavation to its original or better condition. 

 
 
Q6 Is electrical infrastructure required for the train whistle cessation. 
A6 Yes. 
 
 
Q7 Is there safety requirement for driveways crossed by the railway? 
A7 Yes. Any safety requirements at the driveways will be specified by Southern Railway, but 

as these are private crossings, they will not require signalization 
 
Q8 Is landscaping design required for the project? 
A8 Yes. 
 
 
Q9 Will the City waive the fees ($33/day) and damage deposit ($1000) for the Street Use 

Permit? 
A9 Yes. 
 
 
Q10 Will the City be operating within their existing ROW, or will they have to buy land to 

accommodate this widening? 
A10 All work for reconstruction of Ewen Avenue including road widening is within City’s 

ROW. 
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Q11 Have any preliminary geotechnical / hydrogeological studies been performed to identify 

the feasibility of a bioswale - or is all of that part of this assignment? 
A11 No studies have been performed with regards to identifying the feasibility of a bioswale. 

This task would be part of the assignment. 
 
 
Q12 Sheet C-105 of the functional design (attached to the RFP as Appendix A) has a note 

indicating that the ditch to be enclosed is a “Class B Watercourse – RAR requirements 
apply. QEP assessment required.” The RFP makes no mention of coordination with 
Fisheries and Oceans Canada (DFO) with regards to the ditch enclosure. Has the City 
reached an agreement with the DFO regarding this issue?  

A12 A Qualified Environmental Professional (QEP) assessment will be required for the 
section between Boyd and Stanley Streets. This section was identified as Class B 
Watercourse that provides some food and habitat potential and will be subject to 
Riparian Areas Regulation (RAR) requirements. There is no agreement with DFO in this 
regard. 

 
 
Q13 Could you let me know if street lighting design is required for the project? 
A13 Street lighting design is required for this project. 
 
 
Please acknowledge this addendum in your Proposal. 
 
 
END OF ADDENDUM #1 
 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 

 
Heather M. Rossi 
Intermediate Buyer 
email: hrossi@newwestcity.ca  


